
 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 

 
Village Council Meeting 

6:30 P.M. Thursday, July 7, 2016 

Village Administration Building 

99 High Street 

South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

 

 

 Agenda Items 

1. Call to Order 

2.  Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Guest Speakers 

A. Tejas Dinesh, local Boy Scout, re: Bike Trail Kiosk Project 

5.  Open Forum  

6.  Approval of Meeting Minutes 

A. None 

7. Emergency Resolutions/Ordinances and Third Reading of Resolutions/Ordinances 

A. Emergency Resolution# 2016-20- OPWC Final Application for State Route 48/Mason-Morrow-
Millgrove Road Project  

B. Emergency Resolution# 2016-21- Approve Purchase of Parcel from James & Ruth Cooper relative to 
the S.R.48/Mason-Morrow-Millgrove Road Project 

C. Emergency Resolution# 2016-22 Authorize the Submittal of the Fiscal Year 2017 Tax Budget to the 
County Auditor 

8.  Village Administrator Reports (non-legislative) 

Update Memo 

9. New Business  
A. Motion to approve invoices to be paid 

 

10. Old Business 
A. None 

11. Committee Reports and Communications 
A. None 

12. Council Member Comments 

13. Village Administrator Comments 



 

 

14. Village Solicitor Comments 

15.  Warren County Sheriff – Sergeant Boylan’ s Comments 

16.  Mayor’s Comments  

17. Executive Session 

A. ORC 121.22(G)(3) Pending or Imminent litigation 

18.  Adjournment 

 

Members of the public may address Council during the Open Forum segment of the agenda and 
shall be limited to five minutes each. After the speaker concludes remarks Council may comment or 
ask questions at that time.  The Mayor may at his or her discretion restrict duplicate testimony on a 
particular subject. 

 

The next regular Village Council Meeting will be on Thursday, July21, 2016 at 6:30 PM.   

 



 

 
 

Village of South Lebanon 

99 N. High Street, South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

513-494-2296 

fax: 513-494-1656 

www.southlebanonohio.org 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

 

To:  Mayor & Village Council 

 

From:  Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 

 

Date:  July 6, 2016 

 

Subject:  OPWC Final App – 48/M-M-M Project 

  

 

Attached is Resolution# 2016-20 which would authorize the final application to the Ohio Public 

Works Commission for a 0%, 20-year loan of up to $705,058 to complete the SR48/Mason-

Morrow-Millgrove Road Project.  

 

Attached is the current estimated costs. The Village share went up $102,717 due to higher than 

anticipated right-of-way costs.  

 

The application is due to the Warren County Regional planning Commission by Friday, July 22nd 

 

 



SR 48 MMM

Current Opinion of Project Cost

Phases Cost  STP VSL Safety Balance FY Spent

Management Fee 105,136$    $              -   105,136$  -$         -$            FY 14

 Preliminary Engineering 

and Detail Design $300,111 $0 $0 $300,111 $0 FY 14

 Right of Way Acquisition $288,673 $80,000 $126,613 $120,788 $38,728 FY 15-FY 16

 Construction 

Administration $175,312 $175,312 $0 $0 $0 FY 17

 Construction $2,504,459 $1,928,433 $576,026 $0 $0 FY 17
 Total Cost $3,373,691 $2,183,746 $807,775 $420,899 $38,728

 

 

7/6/2016



 

 

VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON, OHIO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON TO 

PREPARE AND SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE OHIO 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION STATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND/OR 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM(S), AND DECLARING 

AN EMERGENCY 

 

 WHEREAS, the State Capital Improvement Program and the Local 

Transportation Improvement Program both provide financial assistance to 

political subdivisions for capital improvements to public infrastructure; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village of South Lebanon is planning to make capital 

improvements for State Route 48/Mason-Morrow-Millgrove Road Intersection 

Project; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements herein above described is 

considered to be a priority need for the community and is a qualified project 

under the OPWC programs, and  

  

 WHEREAS, immediate action is required to assure timely delivery of 

public works services and projects in the Village and to meet the July 22, 2016 

deadline date for the submission of the application, and such action is necessary 

in order to preserve the public peace, health, safety or welfare of the Village.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of South 

Lebanon, Ohio, at least two-thirds of all members elected thereto concurring: 

 

 Section 1. That the Council authorizes the Mayor to apply to the OPWC 

for funds as described above. 

 

 Section 2. That the Council is acting in its administrative capacity in 

adopting this Resolution.   

 

 Section 3.  That the recitals contained within the Whereas Clauses set 

forth above are incorporated by reference herein.  

 

 Section 4. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency 

measure in accordance with Ohio Rev. Code § 731.30 for the immediate 



 

 Page -2- 

preservation of the public peace, health, safety and general welfare; and, 

this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its 

passage.  

  

Section 5.  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the Council 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an 

open meeting of Council in compliance with all legal requirements, including 

Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

  

 

Adopted this 7th day of July, 2016.  

 

Attest: ______________________________ ______________________________ 

  Sharon Louallen, Fiscal Officer/Clerk James D. Smith, Mayor 

 

Rules Suspended:   /    /2016 (if applicable)                                Effective Date –    /    /2016 

 

Vote - ____ Yeas 

           ____  Nays 

 

First Reading –    /   /2016                                                               Effective Date –    /    /2016 

Second Reading –    /   /2016                                                                 

Third Reading–    /   /2016                                                                

 

Vote - ____ Yeas 

           ____  Nays 

 

 

Prepared by and approved as to form: 

 

PAUL R. REVELSON 

VILLAGE SOLICITOR 

SOUTH LEBANON, OHIO 

 

By:       

Date: __7/7/2016  



 

 
 

Village of South Lebanon 

99 N. High Street, South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

513-494-2296 

fax: 513-494-1656 

www.southlebanonohio.org 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

 

To:  Mayor & Village Council 

 

From:  Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 

 

Date:  July 6, 2016 

 

Subject:  SR48/Mason-Morrow-Millgrove (M-M-M) Road Project ROW Parcel 11 

  

 

On the agenda for the June 7th meeting is the purchase of right-of-way .  

 

Parcel #11 is owned by James & Ruth Cooper along the south side of Mason-Morrow-Millgrove 

Road abutting Turtle Creek.. The appraised Fair Market Value (FMV) of the parcel was $17,823 

which included the cost to cure the relocation of their fence. After negotiations, the Cooper’s 

accepted our offer of $20,561 which include the fence costs. 

 

Only one parcel remains to complete the right of way acquisition phase. Paul is beginning the 

appropriation process to acquire this last piece.  

 

Let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 

 

 



1965 sf @ $4.86 9549

1895 sf @ $4.86 9210

$191
$472

$954
$58

$127

FINAL $20,561.00

FINAL





VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON, OHIO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A 

PARCEL ALONG MASON-MORROW MILLGROVE ROAD (ODOT PARCEL# 11-

WD-1 and 11-WD-2) NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE STATE 

ROUTE 48/MASON-MORROW-MILLGROVE ROAD PROJECT, AND 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY  

 

  

 WHEREAS, the purchase of a parcel (Parcel# 11-WD-1, 11-WD-2) along-

Morrow-Millgrove Road, South Lebanon, OH 45065 (“the Property”) is necessary 

for the construction of the State Route 48/Mason-Morrow-Millgrove Road 

Intersection Improvements Project; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Village desires to purchase from James F. Cooper and Ruth 

M. Cooper, the Property pursuant to the terms contained in the Contract for Sale 

and Purchase of Real Property, attached hereto as Exhibit A; and,  

  

 WHEREAS, immediate action is required for the Village to purchase the Property 

to complete the State Route 48/Mason-Morrow-Millgrove Road Intersection 

Improvements Project in a timely manner. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of South 

Lebanon, Ohio, at least two-thirds of all members elected thereto concurring: 

 

 Section 1. That the Council approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute 

the Contract for Sale and Purchase of Real Property, attached hereto as Exhibit A, 

and any other documents to consummate the purchase of the Property.  

 

 Section 2.  Approving the consideration in the amount of $20,561.00 as 

recited in the attached Exhibit A.  

  

 Section 3. Authorizing the Fiscal Officer to pay the applicable costs to 

consummate the purchase of the Property.  

 

  Section 4. That the Council is acting in its administrative capacity in 

adopting this Resolution.   

 



 Page -2- 

 Section 5.  That the recitals contained within the Whereas Clauses set forth 

above are incorporated by reference herein.  

 

 Section 6. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency 

measure in accordance with Ohio Rev. Code § 731.30 for the immediate 

preservation of the public peace, health, safety and general welfare. 

 

 Section 7.  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the 

Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were passed in 

an open meeting of Council in compliance with all legal requirements, including 

Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

Adopted this 7th day of July, 2016.  

 

Attest: ______________________________ ______________________________ 

  Sharon Louallen, Fiscal Officer/Clerk James D. Smith, Mayor 

 

Rules Suspended:                  (if applicable)                                Effective Date –  

 

Vote - ____ Yeas 

           ____  Nays 

 

First Reading –    /  /2016                                                            Effective Date –    /    /2016 

Second Reading –    /  /2016                                                                 

Third Reading –   /  /2016                                                                

 

Vote - ____ Yeas 

           ____  Nays 

 

 

Prepared by and approved as to form: 

 

PAUL R. REVELSON 

VILLAGE SOLICITOR 

SOUTH LEBANON, OHIO 

 

By:       

Date:    7/7/16   

 
 

























VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON, OHIO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING OF AND AUTHORIZING THE FISCAL OFFICER 

TO SUBMIT THE [INTERIM] TAX BUDGET FOR FY2017 TO THE COUNTY 

AUDITOR, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village is required to timely submit an [interim] tax 

budget for each fiscal year to the County Auditor; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Fiscal Officer has prepared the FY2017 [interim] tax 

budget for the Village, and provided a copy to the Council; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, immediate action is required for the Village’s FY 2017 

[interim] Tax Budget to be timely submitted to the County Auditor in order for 

the Village to fund its FY2017 operations, and such action is necessary in order to 

preserve the public peace, health, safety or welfare of the Village.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of South 

Lebanon, Ohio, at least two-thirds of all members elected thereto concurring: 

 

 Section 1. That the Council does hereby approve of the [interim] Tax 

Budget prepared by the Fiscal Officer for FY2017. 

 

 Section 2.  That the Council does authorize the Fiscal Officer to submit 

the [interim] Tax Budget for FY2017 to the County Auditor. 

  

 Section 3. That the Council is acting in its administrative capacity in 

adopting this Resolution.   

 

 Section 4.  That the recitals contained within the Whereas Clauses set 

forth above are incorporated by reference herein.  

 

 Section 5. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency 

measure in accordance with Ohio Rev. Code § 731.30 for the immediate 

preservation of the public peace, health, safety and general welfare; and, 

this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its 

passage.  

  



 Page -2- 

Section 6.  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the Council 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an 

open meeting of Council in compliance with all legal requirements, including 

Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

  

Adopted this 7th day of July, 2016.   

 

Attest: ______________________________ ______________________________ 

  Sharon Louallen, Fiscal Officer/Clerk James D. Smith, Mayor 

 

Rules Suspended:  07/07/2016 (if applicable)                            Effective Date – 07/07/2016 

 

Vote - ____ Yeas 

           ____  Nays 

 

First Reading –    /   /2016                                                               Effective Date –    /    /2016 

Second Reading –    /   /2016 

Third Reading –     /   /2016                                                             

 

Vote - ____ Yeas 

           ____  Nays 

 

 

Prepared by and approved as to form: 

 

PAUL R. REVELSON 

VILLAGE SOLICITOR 

SOUTH LEBANON, OHIO 

 

By:       

Date: 7/7/2016  

















 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 

 
Village Council Workshop Meeting 

7:00 P.M. Thursday, July 7, 2016 
Village Administration Building 

99 High Street 
South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

 

 Agenda Item 

1. Call to Order 

2.  Roll Call 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

4.  Guest Speakers 

A. None 

5. Open Forum 

6. Village Administrator Reports (non-legislative) 

  

7. New Business 

A. None 

8. Old Business 
A. None 

9. Committee Reports and Communications 

10. Solicitor’s Comments 

11. Warren County Sheriff’s Department Comments 

12. Council Member’s Comments 

13. Mayor’s Comments 

14. Adjournment    

 

Members of the public may address Council during the Open Forum segment of the agenda and 
shall be limited to five minutes each.  After the speaker concludes remarks Council may comment or 
ask questions at that time.  The Mayor may at his or her discretion restrict duplicate testimony on a 
particular subject. 

 

The next Village Council Workshop Meeting will be on Thursday, August 4, 2016 at 
approximately 7:00 PM.   


